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Response from the Mayor of London 

 

Dear Julia Morris and Debbie Porter, 

Thank you for contacting the Mayor and for highlighting LB Waltham Forest Council’s 

consultation on introducing a Selective Licensing scheme to cover 20 of the 22 

wards in the borough; and a borough-wide Additional Licensing scheme to cover all 

eligible HMOs. 

The Mayor considers property licensing to be one of the most valuable tools councils 

have to regulate and target their enforcement activity. There is strong evidence that 

selective licensing schemes help to drive up standards and conditions when used in 

the private rented sector (PRS). The Mayor’s 2018 London Housing Strategy 

committed to “providing strong support for well-designed and operated council 

licensing schemes". 

As the consultation document states, the PRS has grown steadily over the last 

decade and now stands at 28 percent of Waltham Forest’s housing supply and is a 

tenure that 39 percent of households with dependent children in the borough rely on. 

This is similarly the case in London more broadly, with the PRS accounting for 29 per 

cent of London’s housing market and is home to 2.7m renters. The Mayor is deeply 

concerned by the scale and impact of poor quality housing, with nearly a quarter of 

London’s PRS homes classed as ‘non-decent’. 

Waltham Forest’s proposal relates to a large Selective Licensing scheme, covering 

more than 20 per cent of Waltham Forest’s geographical area and more than 20 per 

cent of the borough’s PRS housing, which therefore requires Secretary of State 

approval. The Mayor is aware that this process can be time-consuming and costly for 

boroughs. Please be assured that the Mayor continues to lobby the government to 

make it easier and reduce the burden on local authorities who wish to implement 

larger schemes. 

Licensing schemes often target the parts of the PRS where low-income households, 

among which those with several protected characteristics are over-represented, are 

most likely to live. Our Housing in London report (2022) indicated that Black and 

Asian renters were most likely to say that the quality of their housing was poor and 

our Housing and Race Equality in London report (2022) indicated that Black and 

Asian renters were particularly likely to live in ‘non-decent’ homes. Licensing 

schemes are therefore likely to have a particularly positive impact on people with 

those protected characteristics. 

With this in mind, the Mayor is supportive of LB Waltham Forest’s proposals for a 

Selective Licensing scheme and an Additional Licensing scheme. 

Yours sincerely, 

Calum Davidson 

Senior Policy Officer (Housing) 
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Response from Head of Housing Regulatory Services 
London Borough of Barnet 
 
 
Dear Mark, 
 
Thank you for inviting LB Barnet to comment on LB Waltham Forest's new PRS 
licensing proposals. My apologies for the delay in replying. 
 
We have reviewed the consultation documentation and would provide the following 
comments: 
 
LB Barnet believes that both Additional Licensing for HMOs and Selective Licensing 
are both appropriate and useful tools for councils to seek to improve the standard 
and management of the PRS and to reduce the incidence of ASB associated with the 
PRS. Indeed, in most London boroughs, we would see the two discretionary 
schemes as being almost essential tools to help to effectively manage the 
increasingly large proportion of privately rented properties, particularly in more 
deprived areas and wards. In Barnet, we have already renewed our first additional 
licensing scheme that expired in 2021 and have approved two selective licensing 
schemes for 3 wards and a further 10 wards, which, subject to Secretary of State 
approval will both be introduced in due course.  
Barnet's use of these powers is an endorsement of the principle of the current 
proposals by Waltham Forest. 
 
We believe that Waltham Forest have set out sound grounds for reaching their 
decision to renew both discretionary schemes in the consultation documentation and 
have shown that the existing schemes have, notwithstanding the difficulties 
presented by the COVID-19 pandemic demonstrated successful outcomes, which 
the proposed renewed schemes can and will build upon to significantly improve the 
PRS in Waltham Forest.  
We would agree with the proposed size and scope of both schemes. 
 
Regarding the proposed fees, these will clearly vary form authority to authority 
depending upon their internal structures and processes.  
However, the proposed fees appear reasonable when compared to other London 
boroughs and, as has been stated have been calculated and are proposed to be split 
in line with the Hemming/Gaskin ruling. Barnet has not used or proposed any 
discounts in its schemes to date, but we have undertaken to carry out a further 
review of the benefits and effectiveness of discounts offered by other authorities to 
further understand how these can be balanced against the requirement to keep the 
schemes cost-neutral, whilst not needing to increase non-discounted fees to offset 
the discounts. Waltham Forest do not seem to have addressed how they have 
allowed for this in their consultation documents as far as we can see. 
 
We do however agree that it would not be appropriate to offer an early-bird discount 
when renewing licensing schemes, as opposed to doing so when commencing a 
scheme in an area for the first time. 
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We would support the proposed conditions set out in the consultation and believe 
that they are clear and easy to understand. 
 
We agree with the proposed objectives for the proposed schemes. 
 
In conclusion, LB Barnet strongly support the proposals in the consultation. 
 
Kind regards 
 
Belinda 
 
Belinda Livesey 
Head of Housing Regulatory Services 
Pronouns (she/her) 
Housing Regulatory Services 
London Borough of Barnet, 2 Bristol Avenue, Colindale, NW9 4EW 
Tel: 020 8359 7438| Web: barnet.gov.uk 
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